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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Manhattan Beach Unified School District as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30,2005, which collectively comprise the District's basic fìnancial statements, as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibiliry of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contain ed in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
ofthe United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Manhattan
Beach Unified School District at June 30,2005, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereofand the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, the Special Reserve Fund, and the
Cafeteria Fund for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 29,2005, on our
consideration of the Manhaftan Beach Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose ofthat report is to describe the scope ofour testing ofinternal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the ínternal controls over financíal reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards utd
should be considered in assessing the results ofour audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 6 is not a required part of the basic financial statements,
but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain
limited procedures, consisting principally of ìnquires of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, rve did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

BEVERLY HILLS CALIFORNIA
S.\NTA }IARIA. CALIFORI{IA



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the

lvf anhattan Beach Unified School District's basic hnancial statements. The accompanying combining and individual fund

financial statements and schedules, financial, and statistical information listed in the table of contents, including the

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, which is required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizatior?s, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Manhattan Beach Unified School District.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic hnancial statements and,

in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

*#*u tr***" / l,i*,*,ì ',1*à*.¿

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM
Beverly Hills, California
November 29,2005



This section of Manhattan Beach Unified School District's annual flrnancial report presents
otr discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year
that ended on June 30, 2005. Please read it in conjunction with the District's financial
statements, lvhich immediately follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Management Discussion and Analysis

The District's financial reports show revenues of $58.3 million and expenditures of $57.6
million, leaving a positive balance of $0.7 million. Net assets totaled $ 2.5 million. Net
assets are down from last year, by $1.6 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts-management's discussion and analysis (this
section), the basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The
basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of
the District:

The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term
and long- term information about the District's overall financial status.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of
the District, reporting the District's operations in more detail than the district-wide
statements. The financial statements also include notes to financial information and
supplementary information.

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of
net assets includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's
revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

The two district-wide financial statements report the District's net assets and how they
have changed. Net assets: the difference betr,veen the District's assets and liabilities is one
way to measure the District's health or position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net assets are an indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as changes in the District's property tax base and the condition of school
buildings and other facilities.

In the district-w'ide financial statements, Manhattan Beach Lhifìed School District is
reporting its basic services, such as regular and special education, transportation, and
administration. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most of these activities. These
are called Governmental Activities.
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Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most
signifrcant funds-not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District
uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs.
Some funds are required by State law, Also, the District establishes other funds to control
and manage money for particular purposes (reprying its long-term debts) or to show that it
is properly using certain revenues (federal and state grants).

The District has th¡ee types of funds:

Governmental funds: lvfost of the District's basic services are included in governmental
funds, which generally focus on how cash and other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash flow and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer fìnancial resources that can be spent
in the near future to finance the District's programs, Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide
additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements that explain
the relationship between them.

Proprietarv funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported
in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide
statements. In fact, the District's enterprise funds are the same as its business-type
activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.

We use internal service funds to report activities that provide supplies and services for the
District's other programs and activities. The district currently has one intemal service
fund-the employee insurance fund.

Fiduciary funds: The District is the trustee, or f,rduciary, for assets that belong to others,
such as the scholarship fund and the student activities funds. The District is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes
and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the District's fiduciary activities are
reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements
because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net assets
The District's combined net assets totaled $2.6 million. The capital assets report shows a
total value of $110.9 million, less $25.1 million of accumulated depreciation. The total
of District's revenues r.vas $58,3 million. Property taxes and state formula aid accounted
for 57 percent of the District's revenues (See Figure l.) Another 20 percent came from
state and federal aid for specihc programs, and the remainder 23 percent is the results of
fees charged for services and miscellaneous sources.



Figure l. Revenue by Source
2003_2004 Loc¿l Source

The District's expenses are predominantly related to educating
students (74 percent). (See Figure 2) The purely administrative
accounted for 5 percent oftotal costs.
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Figure 2. Expenses by Function
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Govern mental Activities
The six major District activities were Instruction - Guidance - Counseling - Evaluation,
School Leadership, Student Transportation, Administration, Maintenance and Operations,
and Debt Services. The Statement of Activities also shows each activity's net cost.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As the District completed the year, its govemmental funds reported a combined fund
balance of $14.2 million. Most of the District's govemmental funds had more revenues
than expenditures in 2004-2005, thereby contributing to the increase in total fund
balance. Two funds, the Cafeteria Fund and the Building Fund, did show a decrease in
fund balance as construction projects were completed and a new cafeteria program lvas

instituted.

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget each quafter
to ref'lect revenue and expense projections. Ending fund balances are sho"vn below:
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

By the end of June 2005, the District had invested $ 110.9 million in a broad range of
capital assets, including land, school buildings, athletic facilities, computer and audio-
visual equipment, and administrative offices. Total depreciation expense for the year
exceeded $2.3 million. However, since land is carried at original cost, actual value of
capital assets is understated. Existing construction projects have been completed.

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was not
aware of any existing circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in
the future.

CONTACTING iHN UTSTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors,
and creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the
District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report
or need additional financial information, please contact the Business Office located at
325 S. Peck Avenue, Manhattan Beach, CA90266.

5.590

Child Dev



MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEIVIENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2005

Àssets

Cash in county treasury

Revolving cash fund

Cash in bank and on hand

Cash and investments rvith fìscal agent

Accounts leceivable

Inlentories. at cost

Prepaid items

Defèrred loss on refunding, net of accumulated amortization

Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization

Land

Construction in progress

Land improvements

Buildings
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Interest payable

Detèrred revenue

Long-term liabi lities:
Due within one year:

General obligation bonds payable

Certitìcates of participation payable

Postemployment bene fi ts

Early retirement incentives

Settlement agreement payable

Total due lvithin one year

Due atler one year:

Interest payable

General obligation bonds payable

Certificates of partici pation payable

Postemployment benefi ts

Early retirement incentives

Settlement agreement payable

Compensated absences payable

Total due atìer one year

Total Liabilitics

Net Assets

Investcd in capital nssets. net olrelated dcbt

Restricted fbr:

Capital proiects

Unrestricted

Total nct assets

Governmental

;\ctivities

$ 1 3,948,782

I 3,109

485,584

i,03 1,582

4,534,749
120,913

145,17 4

1,338,888

123,534

3.909,3 83

2t,250
3,504,323

99,983,350

3,478,ó81
(25.t25,990)

t07,513,312

5,417 ,427
564,839

599,167

See notes to basic tìnancial statements

2,438,706

670,000

10,400

95.804

282,9t3

10,079,256

I 6,883, I 87

62,565,182
14, I I 5,000

25.260
I19,7 55

782,912
397.339

94,888.635

104,967 891

7,444,53 t

3.047,703
(7.946,813 )

_q____1115,42_l_



MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEÑIENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2005

Proeram Ret'enues

Operating Capital
Chalges lor Grants and Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

$ 33,347,815 $ 271,876 $ 6,174.450 $ 1,239.423

Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Instruction-related services:

Superv'ision of instruction
Instl'uctional library. rnedia, and

technology

School site administration
Pupil services:

Home-to-school transportation
Food services

All other pupil services

General administration :

Data processing

All other general administration
Plant services

Ancillary services

Interest on long-term debt

Other outgo

Depreciation (unallocated)

802,53 5

3 5 5,886

2.689,596

370,991

2,244.632

I r,961 401,74r

1,559 281,376

1,046 176,354

10,7?5 98, 1 73

163,424

19,478 267,8s3
465 432,470

3,213 537,391

2,824,054 47,326 776,055

489,784

2,661,s22
4,632,287

877,509
4,427,291
t,954,344 119,834 443,538

2,260,993

Totalgovernmental activitiet $ 59f39,239_ j____120,483_ $ 9,752,825 $ 1,239,423

General revenues:

Taxes and subventions:

Taxes levicd for general purposes

Taxes levied for debt senice
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific

purposes

Interest and invcstment earnings
Interagency revenues

Miscellaneous
Total general revenues

Change in net assets

Nct asscts beginning of fìscal year
Prior year adj ustments

Net assets beginning of fiscal year, restated
Net asscts end of fìscal year

See notes to basic 1ìnancial statements



Net (Expense)

Revenue and

Changes in

Net Assets

$ (25.659,066)

(3 88,83 3 )

(72.951)
(2,s12,le6)

(262,093)

(2,08 l,208)
(2,000,673)

(489,784)
(2,374.191)
(4,199,352)

(336,e05)
(4,427,291)

(1,390,972)
(2,260,993)

(48,456,508)

t7,922,657
3,487,401

t9,027,736
262.564

9,000

6,070,622

46,779,980

( 1,676,s28)

4.717,755
(495,806)

4.22t.949
2.545.121



MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FLTNDS

June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash in county treasury

Revolving cash fund
Cash in bank and on hand

Cash and investments with fiscal agent

Accounts recei,'able:

Federal and state governments

Other

Inventory, at cost

Prepaid items

Due from other funds

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Defened revenue

Due to other f'unds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for revolving fund
Reserved for inventory
Reserved for prepaid items

Reseru.-ed for debt service

Unreserved:

Undesignated

Total lund balances

Special
General Resen e Cafeteria Building

Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 3,183,505 $ 4,819,959 S 24,829 S 319,289
10,000 3,t09

485,584

30,9232,803.819

I, I ó5,842 46,200 235,7 t4

1,006,409

2.559
90, I 50

t45,17 4
30,763

'724,200

$ 7,398,490 $ 5,590,359 $ 810,922 $ 1,328,256:::

$4,903,088$$240,351$5,186
599,167

534,200

5,502,255 77 4,55t 5.r86

r 0,000

90, I 50

t45,174

3,1 09

30,763

1,650.911 5,590,359 2,499 1,323,070

1.896,235 5,590,359 36,37t 1,323,070

Total liabiliries and fund balances $ 7,398,490 $ 5,590,359 $ 810,922 $ t.328,256

l0
See notes to basic fìnancial statements



Bond Interest Other

and Redemption Governmental

Fund Funds

3.233.388 $

Total

Covernmental
Funds

2.335,7 t4 S

25,t7 4

249,407

_q__i¿]i¿gg_ _q__2,61!¿:l_

r 3,9 1 6,684

l 3, r09

4 85,5 84

1.03 1,582

2,834,742

1,699,722

120,913

145,17 4

724,200

$ 267,550

190,000

457,550

20,971.7 t0

3,233,3 88

$ 5,4 I 6, 175

599,t67
724,200

6,739,s42

13,109

120,913

145,174

3,233,3 88

10,7 I 9,584

3.233,3 88

3.233.388 S

2,152.745

2,152.745

2,6 10,295

11,232,168

s 20,97 t.710
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ùIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNW'IENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEil/IENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2005

Total fund balances - governmental funds

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net assets,

all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation.

Capital assets at historical cost $ I 10,896,987

Accumulated depreciation (25,125,990)

In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until the period in

which it matures and is paid. In government-wide statement of activities, it is

recognized in the period that it is incurred.

In governmental funds, debt issuance costs are recognized as expenditures in the period

they are incurred. In the government-wide stat€ments, debt issuance costs are capitalized

and amorlized over the life of the debt.

Defened losses on refunding, net of accumulated amortization have not been repofted

in the governmental funds. These are capitalized and amortized over the life

of the new debt or old debt whichever is shorter in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities: In govemmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the

statement of net assets, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported.

Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

Net

General obligation bonds payable

Cerlificates of participation payable

Postemployment benefits

Early retirement incentives

Settlement agreement PaYable

Compensated absences payable

Total

14.232,168

lnternal service funds are used to charge the costs of services to the individual funds.

The assets and liabilities oIthe internal service funds are included in the govern-

mental activities in the statement of net assets,

'lotal net assets, governmental activities

85,7"Ì0,997

See notes to basic fìnancial statements

(t'7,448,026)

$ (65,003,888)
( 14,785,000)

(35,660)
(215,559)

( I ,065,825)
(397,339)

123,534

1,33 8,888

l3

(81,503,271)

3l

2,545

r3l

421



M,\NHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNIV1ENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues:

Revenue Limit Sources:

State apportionments

Local sources

Federal

Other state

Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries

Classified salaries

Employee benefits

Books and supplies

Contracted services and other

operating expenses

Capital outlay
Other outgo

Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds from sale ofcapital assets

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other fìnancing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources

ovcr (under) expenditures and other
uses

["und balances. July l.2004

Prior ¡'car adjustrnents

Fund balances, July l, 2004, r'est¡ted

f'Lrnd balances, June 30, ?005

Special

Resen'e Cafeteria Building
General Fund Fund Fund Fund

s 14,932,057 S - $ - $

18,078,096

1,373,987

7,434,029

5,286,322 l3l.40l t,849,949 33.732

47 .104,491 13 I ,401 2,013 ,373 33,732

156,323

7,i01

23,156,702

6,730,493
7,222,325
2,094,607

6,950,564

I 85,846

26,389

47,056,926

9,509

753,1 I I
204,995

9l1,537

195,246 4,946
859,488

917.125

2.073,40s 1,781.559

47,s6s 131,40r (60,032) (1,747,827)

I ,457 ,387 198,000
(408,087) ( r ,45 7,3 87)

I 98,000

( l 98,099)

r,049,300 ( 1,259,387) (ee)

1.096.86s (1,127,e86) (60,032) (r,747,926)

1,367,030 6,718,345 96,403 3.070,996

(567,660)

799.3i0 6.718,345 96,403 3.070.9e6

s 1,896.235 $ 5,590.359 S 36,37t S 1.323,070

See notes to basic 1ìnancial statements

l4



Bond lnterest Other

and Redemption Governmental

Fund Funds

tt <rl

3,4g5:t 13

24,335
2,383.796
3,052,492

5,460,623

826,337

1,105,090

628,259

263,3Q4

322,113

28,446

288,863

3,462,412

3,518,234

Total
Governmental

Funds

14,932,057

18,078,096

1,554,645

9.847,447

58,261 ,8s4

23,991,548

8,588.701

8,055,579

3,259,448

7,472,869
887,934

885,846

4,419,348

57,561,273

700,5 81

198,000

2,063,573
(2,063,573)

198,000

13.849.609

3, r86,971

3,186,971

331.263 1,998,211

408, I 86

331.263

2,902.125

408 r86

2.902. 125

2.106.397

3.233.388 S

(253.652)

898,581

13,901,247

(567,660)

( 253.652)

2.t52,7 45

r3.333.587

14.232.168
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FLTNDS TO THE

STATEIV{ENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Total net change in lund balances - governmental funds

capital outla¡,s are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. Horvever, in the

statentent ofactivities, the costs ofthose assets are allocated over their estimated uselul

lives as depreciation expense, The diflerence betrveen capital outlay expenditures

and depreciation expense lor the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay

Depreciation expense

s 925,628
(2.260,993)

Net

In governmental funds, the entire proceeils lrom disposal olcapital assets are reported

as revenue. In the statement ofactivities. only resulting gain or loss is reported.

The difference between the proceeds fiom disposal olcapital assets and the resulting

gain or loss is:

In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures,

In the govemmenþrvide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported

as reductions of liabilities.

In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period that

it becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized

in the period that it is incurred, Unmatured interest owing at the end of the

períod, less matured interest paid during the period but orving tiom the prior
period was:

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of service to individual

funds. The net loss of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts

earned during the fiscal year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures for

these items are measured by the amount of fìnancial resources used (essentially

the amounts paid). 'Ihis fìscal year, the amounts ea¡ned exceeded vacation paid

by $23,424.

In the statement of activities, post-employment benehts are measured by the amounts

earned during the fiscal year. In governmental funds, horvever, expenditures lor
thesc items are measured by the amount offinancial resources used (essentially

the amounts paid). This fìscal ¡,c¿¡, post-cmployment benefits paid rvere more

than the amounts earned by $155,553.

In the statement of activities, structure legal settlement must be accrued in the year

incurred. In governmental lunds, horvever, such settlemcnt is recoongnized when

paid.

In governmental funds, debt issue costs are recognized as expenditures in the period
they are incurred. ln the government-rvide statements, issue costs are amortized
over the lifè olthc debt. -Ihis 

reprcsents the net amount.

In governmental funds. delerred loss on relunding are recognized as expenditures in the

period they arc incurred. In the govcrnment-ivide statements. rleferred loss on refuncling

arc amortized over the lile of the debt. 'lhis is the amortization f'or the periocl.

Changes in net assets olgovernmental activities

See notcs to basic hnancia[ statements
l6

898,58 I

( r,335,365)

(290,880)

2.825,000

(2,733,17 4)

(7,225)

(23,424)

l5 5,553

( r ,065,825)

(5,259)

(94,5 r0)
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GEì{ERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2005

Revenues:

Revenue Limit Sources:

State apportionments

Local sources

Federal

Other state

Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries

Classified salaries

Employee benefits

Books and supplies

Contracted services and other

operating expenses

Capitaloutlay
Other outgo

Debt service

Total expenditures

Original

s 14,024,559

19,0r9,'797

1,118,099

6,425,362
3,'738,228

44,326,045

Budgeted Amounts

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other fìnancing sources (uses)

Excess ofrevenues and other sources

over (under) expenditures and other

USES

Fund balance, July l,2004

Prior year adjustments

Fund balance, July l,2004, restated

Fund balance, June 30,2005

Final

$ 13,613,333

19,023,195

1,561,67 6

7,316,620
s,320,269

22,842,242
6,3 90,5 88

7,128,994
1,222,428

5,639,320

5',75,665

397,600

44,196,837

Actual

Variance
with

Final Budget
Positive

CNegative)

s 1,318,'724
(945,099)
(187,689)

tt7,409
(33,947)

269,398

( l3 5,997)
(226,000)

15,0r6
715,002

715,498
116,369

57,212

371,2lr

46,835,093

23,020,705
6,504,493
7,297,341
2,799,609

7,666,062

116,369

943,058

397,600

s 14,932,057

18,078,096

1,373,987

7,434,029
5,286,322

47,104,491

23,t56,702
6,'130,493
1 ))1 7)\
' 

'LLL,J 

L¿

2,084,607

6,950,564

885,846

26,389

129 ,208 ( I ,9 I 0, 144)

1,457,387
( l3 5,630)

I,321,757

48,745,237 47,056,926

See notes to basic financial statements

2,693,663 1,45'7,387 (1,236,2',76)

( 135,630) (408,087) (272,457)

2,558,033 1,049,300 (1,508,733)

l,4s0,965

1,367.030

647 ,889 1,096,865

47,565 1,957,709

$ 2,8t7.995 S 2,014,919 $ 1,896,235 S (l18,68.1)

r,367,030

I,688,31 I

1,367,030

r,367,030

t,367 ,030

(s67,660)

i9e31A

tl

448,976

(567,660)

(567,660)



I}IANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRJCT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND C}IANGES IN FLI-NID BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL RESERVE FT]ND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2005

Revenues:
Other local

Total revenues

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Excess ofrevenues and other sources

over (under) expenditures and other

USES

Fund balance, Iuly 1,2004

Fund balance, June 30,2005

Variance
rvith

Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 135,630 $ t35,630 S l3l,4ol S (4,229)

135,630 135,630 l3t,40l (4,229)

135,630 135,630 l3l,40l (4,229)

198,000 198,000
(r,45'7 ,387) (2,693 ,663) (t ,457 ,387) | ,236,27 6

(1,321,757) (2,360,033) (1,127,986) 1,232,047

6,718,345 6,719,345 6,719,345

$ 5,396,588 $ 4,358,312 $ 5,590,359 $ t,232,047

Totalother financing sources (uses) (1,457,387) (2,495,663) (1,259,387) 1,236,276

See notes to basic financial statements
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ÙIANHÀTTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DTSTRICT

STATEIVIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAFETERIA FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2005

Revenues:
Federal
Other state

Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries

Classified salaries

Employee benefits

Books and supplies

Contracted services and other

operating expenses

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

Fund balances, July 1. 2004

Fund balances, June 30, 2005

Budseted Amounts

Olisinal Final

176,300 s 176,300

1,700,010 1,700,010 1,849,949 149,939

1,884,810 1,884,810 2,013,373 128,563

8.500

Variance
with

Final Budget -

Positive

Actual (Negative)

s 1s6,323 $ (19,977)

7,101 (1,399)

8,211
'7'7 |,605
200,519
828,000

53,675

8,500

8,21 I
'171,605

200,519
828,000

53,6',75

1,862,010 1,862,010

22,800

96,403

$ ll9,2o3 $ ll9,2o3æ::

8,509

753,1 l8
204,995
911,537

195,246

(2e8)
18,487
(4,476)

(83,537)

( r4l,571)

(211,395)

(82,832)22,800

96,403

See notes to basic financial statements

2.073,405

(60,032)

96,403

(82,832)
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEÌvIENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FTIND

June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash in county treasury

Accounts receivable:

Other

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service Fund

Self-lnsurance Fund

32,098

285

32,383

1,252

1,252

l3l3l

l3 t3l

See notes to basic fìnancial statements
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES. AND CHANGES II''i FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FLIND

For the Fiscat Year Ended June 30, 2005

Operating Expenses:

Books and supplies

Contracted services and other operating expenses

Total expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest income

Change in net assets

Net assets, July l, 2004

Net assets, June 30, 2005

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service Fund

Self-lnsurance Fund

7,492
590

8,082

(8,082)

857

(7,225)

38,356

See notes to basic frnancial statements

3 l.l3 I
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NIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEIVÍENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPzuETARY FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash paid for books and suPPlies

Cash paid for contracted services and other

operating expenses

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities;
Interest received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at July 1,2004

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2005

Governmental

Activities
Internal Service Fund

Self-lnsurance Fund

$ (6,240)

(5e0)

(6,830)

701

(6,129)

38,227

s 32,098

$ (8,082)

I )<)

$ (6,830)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See notes to basic financial statements
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT FIDUCIARY OF NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2005

Cash in county treasury

Cash on hand and in banks

Accounts receivable:

Other
Prepaid items

Total assets

Pension

Trust
Fund

Retiree

Benefits

Fund

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to student groups

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Unrestricted

Total net assets

AsencY Funds

955,415

7 ,719

Payroll

Clearance

Fund

$ (357,514)

963,134

Student Body

Funds

357,514

6s8,054

65 8,054

305,080

$ 305,080

ll+,lzø

1.318

Totals

336,044

597,901

334,726

9,03'7

35'7,st4

1,299,178

See notes to basic fìnancial statements

336,044

336,044

658,054

336,044

994.098

305,080

305,080
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IVIÄNHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEN.ÍENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Additions
Other local

Deductions
Benefits

Changes in net assets

Net assets, July l, 2004

Net assets, June 30, 2005

Pension

Trust
Fund

Retiree

Benefits

Fund

s 22.693

96,004

(73,3 1 l )

378,391

$ 30s,080

See notes to basic financial statements
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEN{EhITS
June 30, 2005

NOTE I . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Accounting Policies

The Manhattan Beach Unified School District (District) accounts for its fina¡cial transactions in accordance

with policies and procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The
accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

B. Reporting Entity

The Manhattan Beach Unified School District is the level of government primarily accountable for activities
related to public education. The governing authoriry consists of five elected officials who, together, constitute

the Board of Trustees.

The Manhattan Beach Unified School District (DistricÐ and the Manhanan Beach School Facilities
Corporation (Corporation) have financial and operational relationships that meet the reporting entity definition
criteria of the GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entiry, as amended by GASB Statement No.
39, for inclusion of certain activify of the Corporation as a component unit of the District. Accordingly,
certain financial activities of the Co¡poration have been included in the financial statements of the District.

C. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Stat ements :

The government-widefinancial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the slatemenl of activities)
report inlormation on all of the nonfiduciary activilies of the District. Internal service fund activiry is
eliminated to avoid doubling reveru¿es and expenses.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. This is the

same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements but
differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund
financial statements, therefore, include reconciliation with brief explanations to better identiff the relationship
between the government-wide statements and the statements for the governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function or program of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that

are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a

particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities.
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as well as

grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the

District. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each

governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements :

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The focus of governmental fund
financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major governmental fund is

presented in a separate column, and all nonmajor funds are aggregated into one column. The Internal Service

Fund is presented on the proprietary fund statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

The accounting and financial treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All
governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current fTnancial resources measurement focus. With
this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for these funds present increases

(i.e., revenues and other hnancing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net

current assets.
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IIIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEI\.ÍENTS
June 30, 2005

C.

NOTE I - SLTN'IMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOLNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BASrs of Presentation

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. V/ith this

measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds a¡e included on the

proprietary fund's Statement of Fund Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Assets for proprietary funds presents increases (i.e. revenues) and decreases (i.e. expendirures) in
net total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the District meets the cash flow
needs of proprietary activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the internal service fund
are charges to other funds for self insurance costs. Operating expenses for internal service funds include the
costs of insurance premiums and claims related to self-insurance.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in
the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary
funds use the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues - exchange and non-exchange transaclions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value,
is recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. "Available" means
the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, " available" means collectible
within the current period or within 60 days after hscal year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is

recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and entitlements is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibiliry requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
include timing requirements, which specify the fiscal year when the resources are to be used or the fiscal year
when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local resources to be

used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District
on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must
also be available before it can be recognized.

Deþrred revenue:

Deferred revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.
Grants and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as deferred revenue. On
goverrunentâl fund financial statements, receivables associated with non-exchange transactions that will not be

collected within the availability period have also been recorded as deferred revenue.

D.
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEìVÍENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SLD/ßIARY OF SIGMT'ICANT ACCOLT{TING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Basis of Accounting (Continued)

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified
accrual basis ofaccounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related
fund liability is incurred. However, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, debt service expenditures,
as well as expendinrre related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the
governmental funds.

When both restricted and uruestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a separate

accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts

that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity or retained earnings, revenues, and expendihrres or expenses, as

appropriate. District resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose

for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The District's
accounts are organized into major, nonmajor, proprietary, and fiduciary funds as fbllows:

Maj or Governmental Funds :

Exp e n s e s / exp enditure s :

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all financial resources
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Special Reserve Fund is used to account for resources reserved for economic uncertainties.

The Cafeteria Fund is used to account for revenues received and expenditures made to operate the District's
cafeterias.

The Building Fund is used to account for the acquisition of governmental capital facilities and buildings from
the sale of bonds and certificates of participation issued by the Manhattan Beach School Facilities Corporation.

The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
repayment of District bonds, interest, and related costs.

N onmaj o r Gov e rn me ntal Funds :

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specitìc purposes. The District maintains two nonmajor special revenue funds:

1. The Deferred Maintenance Fund is used for the purpose of major repair or replacement of
District property.

The Child Development Fund is used to account for resources committed to child
development programs maintained by the District.
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEN,TENTS
June 30, 2005

NorE I - s[nÍNfARY oF SIGMFICANT AccoLì,rrrNc POLICIES (conrinued)

E. Fund Accounting (Continued)

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of long-term
debt principal, interest, and related costs. The District maintains one nonmajor debt service fund.

The Corporate Debt Service Fund is used to account for interest and redemption of principal of the
District's certificates of participation as issued by the Manhattan Beach School Facilities Corporation
(Component Unit).

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and/or construction of governmental capital
assets. The District maintains two nonmajor capital project funds:

The Capital Facilities Fund is used to account for resources received from developer impact fees
assessed under the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

The County School Facilities Fund is used to account for State apportionment provided by SB 50,
Proposition lA bond money.

Proprietary Fund:

Internal Service Funds are used to account for services rendered on a cost-reimbursement basis within the
District. The District maintains one internal service fund:

The Self-lnsurance Fund is used to pay small medical claims below the District's insurance deductible
limits.

Fiducíary Funds:

Pension Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the District as trustee. The District maintains one
pension trust fund, the Retiree Benefìts Fund, which is used to pay benefits for retirees of the District.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets of others for which the District acts as an agent. The District
maintains an agency fund for its student body accounts. The funds are used to account for the raising and
expending of money to promote the general welfare, morale, and educational experience of the srudent body.
The amount reported for student body funds represents the combined totals of all schools within the District. The
Dishict also maintains one agency fund for payroll clearance purposes.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Arurual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for all governmental funds. By state law, the District's governing board must adopt a final
budget no later than July l. A public hearing must be conducted to receive cornments prior to adoption. The
District's governing board satistìed these requirements,

These budgets are revised by the District's governing board and District Superintendent during the fìscal year
to give consideration to unanticipated income ard expenditures. The original a¡d fìnal revised budgets are
presented for the General Fund, the Special Reserve Fund, and the Cafèteria Fund in the tìnancial statements.

Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the tìscal year for all
budgeted funds. The District employs budget control by minor object and by individual appropriation
accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object account.

F.

30



IVTANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIV{ENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE I - SLBINIARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOLNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for
which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other

commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid, All
encumbrances are liquidated at June 30.

Assets. Liabilities. and EquiryH.

1. Deposits and Investments

Cash bala¡ces held in banks and in revolving funds are insured up to $100,@0 by the Federal

Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or
collateralized.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of its cash

in the Los Angeles County Treasury. The County pools these funds with those of other districts in
the Counfy and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at fair value. Interest earned is

deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all
funds in the pool.

The Counry is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code

Section 53648 et. seq. The funds maintained by the County are either secured by federal depository
insurance or are collateralized.

Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with the Los Angeles County
Treasury was not available.

2. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

Inventory is recorded using the purchase method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the

time individual inventory items are purchased. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first
out) or market and consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. Reported inventories are

equally offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that these amounts are not "available for
appropriation and expenditure" even though they are a component of net current assets.

The District has the option of reporting expendifure in governmental funds for prepaid items either
when purchased or during the benefÏting period. The District has chosen to report the expenditure
during the benefìting period.

3. Amo¡lrz.ation of Deferred C

The costs of issuance of bonds are being amortized on the

bonds on the government-wide statements.

Deferred Loss on Refunding4.

The District has incurred a loss on the refunding of its debt. The deferred loss is being amortized on

the straight line method over the lesser of the remaining period of the old debt or the remaining
period of the new debt on the government-wide statements.

straight line method over the life of the
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE r - SLWÍ]VÍARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOLNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H. Assets, Liabilities. and Equitv (Continued)

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets are those purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more, and are
reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair value as

of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the capital assets or materially extend the capital asset's lives are not capitalized, but are
expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all capital assets is computed using the straight-line basis over
the following estimated useful lives,

Asset Class Examples Estimated Useful
Life in Years

Land N/A
Site improvements Paving, flagpoles, retaining walls,

sidewalks. fencins. outdoor liehtine
20

School buildinss 50
Portable classrooms )\
HVAC systems Heating, ventilation, and air conditioning

systems
20

Roofins 20
Interior construction 25
Caroet reolacement ?

Electrical/nlumbins 30
Sorinkler/fire svstem Fire suporession svstem 25
Outdoor equipment Playground, radio towers, fuel tanks,

DUlnDS

20

Machinery and tools Shop and maintenance equipment, tools l5
Kitchen equipment Aonliances l5
Custodial ecuioment Floor scrubbers. vacuums. other t5
Science and eneineerins Lab equipment, scientific apparatus t0
Furnifure and accessories Classroom and other furnifure 20
Business machines Fax. duplicatine and nrintine eouinmenl t0
Copiers 5

Communication equipment Mobile, portable radios, non-
comÞuterized

10

Computer hardware PCs, printers, network hardware 5

ComDuter software Instructional, other short-term 5rol0
Comnuter software Administrative lon g-term l0 to 20
Audio visual equipment Proiectors, cameras (still and dieital) t0
Athletic equipment Gymnastics, football, weight machines,

rvrestling mats
10

Musical instruments Pianos, strings, brass, percussion t0
Librarv books Collections 5 to7
Licensed vehicles Buses, other on-road vehicles 8

Contractors equipment Major off-road vehicles, fiont-end
loaders, large tractors, mobile air
compressor

10

Grounds equipment Mowers, tractors, attachments l5
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINAN{CIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 1. SL}IMARY OF SIG¡.IIFICANT ACCOL'-NTTING POLICIES (CONtiNUCd)

H

6. Deferred Revenue

Cash is received tbr tèderal and state special projects and programs are recognized as revenue to the

extentthatqualifiedexpenditureshavebeenincurred. Deferredrevenueisrecordedtotheextentcash

received on specific projects and programs exceed qualified expenditures.

Compensated Absences

All vacation pay plus related payroll taxes is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial

statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have

matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Accumulated employee sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabllities of the District. The

District's policy is to record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such benefits

do not veit nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service

period for calculation of retirement benef,its when the employee retires.

Long-Term Obligations

ln the government-wide hnancial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are

."port.á as liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges

and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize issuance costs as an expendihrre

during the current Period.

Net Assets

7,

8.

9.

The govemment-wide statement of net assets includes three equity categories entitled net assets

invejed in capital assets-net of related debt, restricted net assets, and unrestricted net assets. The

invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt category presents the District's equity interest in capital

assets less outitancling principal ofrelated debt. The restricted net assets category is designed to reflect

net assets that are subject to restrictions beyond the District's conhol (externally imposed or imposed by

law). The unrestricted net assets category equals any remaining balance.

Fund Balance Reserves and Designations

Reservations of the ending fund balance indicate the portions of fund balance not appropriable for

expenditure or amounts legally segregated tbr a specific future use. The Reserve for Revolving Fund,

Reìerve for Inventory, and Reserve for Prepaid Items, retìect the portions of the fund balances

represented by revolving fund cash, stores inventory, and prepaid items, respectively. These amounts

urè not available for appropriation and expendirure at the balance sheet date'

Designations of the ending fund balance indicate tentative plans for financial resource utilization in a

future period.

10.

J)



MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

H.

NOTE I - SL:NflfARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOLTIYTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets. Liabilities. and Equiry (Continued)

1l. Revenue Limir/Properry Tax

The District's revenue limit is received from a combination of local property taxes, state
apportionments, and other local sources.

The counry is responsible for assessing, collecting, and apportioning property taxes. Taxes are levied
for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property in the county, The levy is based on the
assessed values ofthe preceding January 1, which is also the lien date. Property taxes on the secured
roll are due on November I and February l, and taxes become delinquent after December l0 and
April 10, respectively. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due on the lien date (Januaryl), and
become delinquent if unpaid by August 31.

Secured properfy taxes are recorded as revenue when apportioned, in the fïscal year ofthe levy. The
counfy apportions secured property tax revenue in accordance with the alternate method of
distribution prescribed by Section 4705 of the California Revenue and Taration Code. Tltis alternate
method provides for crediting each applicable fund with its total secured taxes upon completion of the
secured tax roll - approximately October I of each fiscal year.

The County Auditor reports the amount of the District's allocated properfy tax revenue fo the
California Department of Education. Properry taxes are recorded as local revenue limit sources by
the District.

The California Department of Education reduces the District's entitlement by the District's local
property tax revenue. The balance is paid from the state General Fund, and is known as the State
Apportionment.

The District's Base Revenue Limit is the amount of general purpose tax revenue, per average daily
attendance (ADA), that the District is entitled to by law, This amount is multiplied by the second
period ADA to derive the District's total entitlement.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expendifures/expenses during the reporting period. Actuat results could differ
from those reported.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTÙÍENTS

The District's cash and investmenrs at June 30,2005, consisted of the lollowing:

Cash in banks

Cash and investmcnts rvíth County Treasurer
Cash and investments rvith fiscal npent

'lotal cash and investmcnts

$ 833,4 19

14,546.683

r,031,582

34
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEI,'IENTS

June 30, 2005

NOTE 2 - CASH AIID IN!'ESTIIENTS (Continued)

Cash and investments are presented on the accompanying basic financial statements, as follows:

Cash in County Treasury, statement of
net assets

Cash in revolving fund, statement ofnet assets

Cash on hand and in bank, statement olnet assets

Cash and investments with fiscal agent. statement

of net assets

Cash in County Treasury, statement of
fìduciary net assets

Cash on hand and in bank, statement offiduciary
nst assets

Total cash and investments

Cash in County Treasury

In accordance with Education Code Section 4 I 00 I , the District maintains substantially all of its cash in the Los Angeles

County Treasury as part of the common investment pool($14,546,683 as of June 30, 2005). The fair value of this pool as

of thaidate, as jrovided by the plan sponsor, was $ 14,546,683. The District is considered to be an involuntary participant

in the external pool. Intårest is deposited in the participating funds. The County is restricted by Govemment Code

Section 53635, pursuantto section 53601, to invest in time deposits, u.S. governmentsecurities, stateregisteredwarrants,

notes or bonds, State Treasurer's investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of
deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

Cash on Hand. in Banks. and in Revolvine Fund

Cash balance on hand and in banks ($820,310 as of June 30,2005) and in the revolving fund ($13,109) are insured up to

S 100,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, All cash held by the financial institution is fully insured or

collateralized.

Investments Authorized by the District's Investment Policy

The District's investment policy only authorizes investment in the local government investment pool administered by the

Counry of Los Angel.r. ihr óirtri.t'r investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the

District's exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk'

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments ofdebt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions ofthe debt agreements, rather than the

general provisions of the Califbrnia Government Code or the District's investment policy. The table below identifies the

investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies ce¡1ain provision of

these debt agreements that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk.

t3,948,782
13,109

.18 5,5 84

1,03 I,582

597,901

334,726

16,4 I I,684

Certi{icates olDeposit rvith Bank of Savings

& Loans

U.S. Treasury Obligations

U.S. Agency Securities

Mortgage Backed Security, Prime Quality
ì\tunicipal Obligations

Commercial Paper. Primc QualitY

,,\uthorized
lnvestment'fvpe

fvlaximum
!f aturity

360 days

None
None
None
None

270 days

lVlaximum lvlarimum
Perccntage Investment
olPorttblio in One Issuer
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ÙIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATENIENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTIVIENTS (Continued)

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements (Continued)

Authorized
Investment Tj-pe

lvfoney Market Mutual Funds
Investment Contracts
Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool)
Gtraranteed Invcstmcnt Cìontract

Carrying
Amount

Maximum
ÌVfaturity

NIA
None
None
NiA

Marinlum
Percentage

of Portfolio

'v*laximum
Investment

in One Issuer

None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None

Disclosures Relatins to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest
rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination ofshorter
term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or
coming close to maturiry evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by maturity:

Remaining maturity (in Months)
l2 lvfonths

or Less

13 to 24 25-60
Months Months

More'lhan 60
lvlonths

$ 14,546,683 $ 14,546,683

r,03 1.582 1,031.582

s 15,578,265 $$-$-

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below
is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code and the District's investment policy, and the actual
rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type.

Rating as ofFiscal Year End

Investmcnt T-yDe

Los Angeles County
lnvestment Pool

Fleld by COP Trustees:

Investment Money Market Funds

Total $ r 5,578,265

Inv€stme nt Type Anrount

iVf inimum
l-egal

Rating

Exempt

From

L)isclosure AAA
Not

A Rated

Los Ängeles County
lnvestnrent Pool

Hcld by COP Trustees:

\{oney \4arkets Funds

Total

$ 14,546,683 Nr\

r.03 r,s82

_9_Þr8365_

$ $ r 4,s46.683

1.03 t.582

$ $ s s $rs.578,265
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIV{ENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTùIEÌYTS (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond

that stipulated by the Califomia Government Code. There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5olo or more

of totaI District investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a

government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal

or policy requirements that vyould limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following
provision for deposits: The Califomia Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state

or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under
state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must
equal at least I l0% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allow fìnancial institutions to
secure the District's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public
deposits.

As of June 30,2005, none of the District's deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance

limits were held in uncollateralized accounts.

The custodial credit risk for investmen¡s is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.9., broker-dealer)
to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of another party. The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or
policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments,
custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not
apply to a local government's indirect investment in securities though the use of mutual funds or government investment
pools (such as Los Angeles County Investment Pool).

NOTE 3 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds are as follows:

Fund

Maior Funds

General Fund:
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries

Cafeteria Fund:
Certifìcated salaries

Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Contracted services and other

operating expenses

Nonmajor Funds

Child Development Fund:

Certificated salaries

Classified salaries

Excess Expenditures

$

s
135,997
226,000

298
4,4'/6

83,537

14t,5'71

ö

$

s
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 3 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS (Continued)

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds are as follows (Continued):

Fund

Nonmajor Funds

Child DeveloPment Fund:
EmPloYee benefits
Contracted services and other

operating expenses

Corporate Debt Service Fund:

Debt service

CaPital Facilities Fund:
Contracted services and other

operating expenses

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30,2005, consist of the following:

Excess Expenditures

4,931

32,907

a', 111

288,863

Other

Governmental
Funds

$-

Internal
Service

Fund

Self-

Insurance

--enrl-
$-

Pension

Trust
Fund

Retiree

Beneñu
Fund

$

Agency
Fund

Student

Bod¡,

$
Federal Government:

Federal programs

Stâte Government:

Apportionment

Categorical aid Programs
t¡ttery

Local Sources:

Interest

Miscellaneous

Special

General Reserve

Fund Fund

$ 183,890 $

1 ,065,1 12

I,089,190
465,627

Cafeteria Building
Fund Fund

$ 29,624 $ -

L,299

2r,652 46,2N 2,559 ló'816

1.144.190 235.714 232.59t
285 7,719

1.318

Totals _$_3Jég^66r $ 46.200_ _$ 26þ.,637_ l-¿5t9- Å--?49Æ- -$-285- l-?-zu- -$ t31!-

NOTE 5 - INTERT'UND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transactions are repofted as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as

interfuncl receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Serv"ices provided,

deemed to be at market ornear market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur

when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All

other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers among govemmental funds are netted as part of the

reconciliation to the government-rvide finarlcial statements.
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2005

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Due FronvDue To Other Funds

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Fund Due From

lvlajor Funds:

SPecial Reserve Fund

Cafeteria Fund

Nonmaþr Funds:

Child DeveloPment Fund

Totals

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers consist of transfers tiom funds receiving revenue to funds through which the resources are to be

expended.

Interfund transfers for the 2OO4-2AO5 f,rscal year are as follows:

Maior Funds:
General Fund
SPecial Reserve Fund

Building Fund
Nonmaior Funds:

Deferred Maintenance Fund

CorPorate Debt Service Fund

Totals

NOTE6_CAPITALASSETS

Fund

s 724,200

Due To

$

534,200

190.000

s 724.200L:JZ4LJq

CapitalassetactivitytbrthefiscalyearendedJune30'2005,isshownbelow:

Capital âssets, not being

depreciated:
Land
Constrttction in Progress

'fotal capital assets, not being

depreciated

Transfers In

s 1,457,387
198,000

135,630
212,ss6

Lzwfl3

Balance

Jutv l. 2004 ,\tlditions Deletions

Transfers Out

$ 408,087
1,45',7,387

198,099

s 3,909.383
I l,0c)5.0ó9

s I5.004.152

$-
2l,250

$_-_:2@

s-
I r,095,069

$ I 1.095,069

Balance
June 30. 2005

s 3,909,383
21,250

_r__rlull-
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIV1ENTS
Jurre 30, 2005

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, is shown below:

Balance Balance
July l, 2004 Additions Deletions June 30, 2005

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment

Total capital assets, being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment

$ 3. r 33.700 S 370,623 s 3,504,323
88,',727,2r6 n,628,824 372,690 99,983,350

3,178,68 I 3,478,681

95,339.597 n,999,447 372,690 t06,966,354

1,876,5 t 9 87,675 t,964,t94
18,309,881 2,002,693 81,810 20,230,764
2,760,407 t'70,625 2,931,032

Total accumulated depreciation 22,946.807 2,260,993 81,810 25,125,990

Total capital assets, being
depreciated. net _$ 723e2Je0_ _S 9J38,4s4_ _$.__290,$9_ _S__!.!.!19,361_

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Unallocated $ 2,260,993

NOTET-BONDEDDEBT

The outstanding general obligation bonded debt of the Marhattan Beach Unified School District at June 30, 2005,
is:

Date

Amount of
Capital

Appreciation
Amount of Bonds Included Balance Issued Redeemed Balance

of lnterest Maturity Original in Original Outstanding Current Current Outstanding
Issue Rafe Date Issue July 1,2004 Fiscal Year Fiscal Year June 30, 2005

19964 3.60o/v5.65Vo 2020 S 25,184.723 S 13,019,723 $ 18,034,723 $ $ 1,535,000 S 16,499,723
19988 4.500/e5.25Yo 2023 6,000,501 6,000,501 6,000,501
1999C 3.500/15.8796 2024 5,000,040 4,0t0,039 4,780,040
2001D 3.000/15.330/o 2025 5,148,769 4,263,769 5,098,769
2001A 4.000/15.690/o 2026 2t,5t3,829 4.628,829 4,628,829
20028 3.000/v5.5lo/o 2026 4.185,t01 1,940.10t 4,295,101
20028 3.t00.r5.5794 2026 5,940,925 4,525,925 5,940,925

6,000,501
155,000 4,625,040
45,000 5,053,769

4,628,829
250,000 4,045.1 0 1

5.940,925
2004 2.Q00.^-4.000/o 2019 18,100,000 18,100,000 190,000 18,2 t0.000

_q_e r,6?3,!99_ _Ll 8,1! 8, 8!z_ _!._qL[8, 8 8 8_ l-_ -_ 
-q_2, 

r ?i 009_ Åq¡ 003jgq_

Interest on capital appreciation bonds is accruing annually and is included as a separate component oflong-term debt.
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NIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 7 - BONDED DEBT (Continued)

Defeased Debt

In March 2004, the District issued $ 18,400,000 of generat obligation refunding bonds to advance refund the S 16,885,000

20014 general obligation bonds (serial current interest bonds portion). As a result, the 20014 general obligation bonds

are considered to be defeased and the liability for these bonds had been removed from the accompanying financial

statements. The outstanding principal amount of the defeased debt as of June 30,2005 was S16,750,000'

The refunding resulted in a decrease of the District's total debt service payrnents by $6 1,770 and an economic gain

(difference between the present value of the old and new debt) of $6 1,6 l6'

The annual requirements to amortize general obligation bonds payable, outstanding as of June 30,2005, are as follows:

Fiscal
Years Ending

June 30, PrinciPal

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

201t-20t5
2016-2020
2021-2025

$ 1,670,000
1,810,000
1,102,235
r,069,535
1,037 ,197
4,782,9t0
4,228,641

799,205

_s 16,499J23_

19964 Issue

Fiscal
Years Ending

$ 120,835 $ 28,706 S 11,294

41,630 54,460 25,540
867,765 6,445 3,555

965,465 27,405 17,595

1,122,705 54,866 40,134
6,887,188 646,762 113,238
9,761,360 1,214,6'72 2,105,327
2.335;194 3,967,185 10,502,816

s 22,102,742 $ 6,000,501 $ 13,419,499+

June 30, PrinciPal

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

2011-2015
2016-2020
2021-2025

2026

Principal
19988 Issue

$ 1s5,000
170,000
290,000
rg't,258
l9l,4l3
853,964
7 I 8,888

2,048,517

I 999C Issue

Interest

Interest

$ 23,109
16,300
6,344

137,742
153,5 87

986,036
I ,371,1 l3
6,710,983

s 4,625.040 $ 9,405,214 $ 5,053.769 _q__9,240,15.!_

Principal

$ 70,000
90,000

120,000
140,000

170,000
800,429
97 5,054
872,921

r,815,365

2001D Issue

Interest

s 27,437
24,712
21,030
16,345
10,645

573,32t
1,454,947
1,987,079
5,124,635

4l



MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FI}JANCIAL STATEN,{ENTS
Jt¡ne 30, 2005

NOTE 7 - BONDED DEBT (Continued)

The annual requirements to amortize general obligation bonds payable, outstanding as of June 30,2005, are as lollows
(Continued):

Fiscal
Years Ending

June 30,
20014Issue 20028 Issue

Principal Interest Principal Interest

2006$$-$290,000$65,105
2007 340,000 55,655
2008 395,000 44,433
2009 420,000 3 1,380
2010 305,000 l9,lt3

201l-2015 355,000 80,783
2016-2020 305,797 519,924
2021-2025 3,596,172 9,64g,g2g 695,096 1,g62,5g0
2026-2027 1,032,657 3,587,343 949,208 2,485,42g

_s 4,628W_ _S_11,236111_ _$Ms,rOr _$_L!øJ!l_
Fiscal

Years Ending
June 30,

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

20n-20t5
20t6-2020
2021-2025
2026-2027

Fiscal
Years Ending

June 30,

2006
2007
2008
2009
20 t0

20t l-2015
20t6-2020
2021-2025
2026-2027

2002E Issue 2004 Issue
Principal

$-

195,000
195,000
205,000
920,327
333,293
245,67 t

3,846,644

$ 5,940,925

Interest

51,430
51,430
48,407
42,168
35,363

169,350
461,717
559,329

I 1,299,356

_s l2JoJfl_

Principal

$ 225,000
260,000
295,000
360,000
590,000

6,210,000
10,270,000

$ 705,365
700,515
694,965
688,415
677,441

2,881,212
l, l0l,7g0

lnterest

Totals
Principal

g 2,438,706
2,724,460
2,403,680
2,40g,lgg
2,553,416

14,569,392
19,046,335
12,214,767

7 ,643 ,97 4

$ 65,003,888

Interest

$ 1,004,575
915,782

1,686,499
I ,ggg, I l0
2,058,999

l2,2gl,l2g
16,'776,O'.Ì8

33,607 ,409
22,485,762

J_e2J2s,3])_
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June 30, 2005

NOTE 8 - CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION PAYABLE

20014 Issue

In June of 200 l, the lvlanhattan Beach School Facilities Corporation (Corporation Debt Service Fund) issued Certificates

of Participation rvith an original principal amount of $12,020,000 rvith interest ranging from 4.00 to 5.00 percent. The
maturity date of the Certificates is August, 2020. Al June 30,2005, the principal outstanding was S10,200,000.

20028 Issue

In May of 2002,the lvlanhattan Beach School Facilities Corporation (Corporation Debt Service Fund) issued Certificates

of Participation with an original principal amount of 55,000,000 with a variable interest rate. The maturity date of the

Certificates is September,2022. At June 30, 2005, the principal outstanding was $4,585,000.

The annual requirements to amortize certificates of participation payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2005, are as follows:

Fiscal
Years Ending

June 30, Principal

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

20tt-20t5
2016-2020
2021-2023

$ 455,000
490,000
495,000
510,000
540,000

2,370,000
3,635,000
1,715,000

20014 lssue

Fiscal
Years Ending

lnterest

g 459,225
440,525
421,025
400,925
379,655

1,523,797
713,185
22,000

June 30, Principal

_$__1_0,200,099_ , 
$,, 4,360,33?_

Totals

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

201t -2015

2016-2020
2021-2023

Principal

$ 215,000
2 15,000

220,000
225,000
230,000

1,225,000
l ,3 65,000

890,000

20028 Issue

$ 670,000
695,000
715,000
735,000
770,000

3,595,000
5,000,000
2,605,000

NOTE 9 - POSTEÙIPLOYMENT BENEFITS OT}TER THA¡{ PENSION BENEFITS

@

Interest

$ 128,369
122,t04
I15,718
109,187
I 02,5 10

407,297
217 ,719

30,690

Interest

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 13, the District provides postemployment health care benefits to all

employees who retire from the District on or after attaining age ol 55 with at least 15 years of service. These

postemployment health care benefits will be paid through age of 65 to a maximum of $400 per year. On June 30, 2005,

26 retirees mer these eligibility requirements and a total of $35,660 is e xpected to be paid for these future benefits. For

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2A05, $19,149 in postemployment health care benefits was paid by the District under

this program.
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s s87,s94
562,629
536,743

5l0,l12
482,165

I ,931 ,094
930,904

52.690
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FiNANCIAL STATEIVÍENTS

June 30, 2005

NOTE 9 - POSTE}TPLOYNIENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PEI.¡SION BENEFITS (Continued)

Early retirement incentives

On May 21, 2W3, the District adopted and implemented an Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) for full-time
cerrificated personnel for the 200212003 school year only. To be able to participate in the ERIP, employees must be

current full-time certificated district employees, and: l) be at least 55 years old, and 2) have accumulated at least ten

years of service with the Manhattan Beach Unified School District at the time of ratification of this agreement. Eligible
employees shall be entitled to receive health, dental, and vision insurance coverage up to the existing 2CÆ212003 cap for
five years at the employee's current level of coverage (single party or two-party plan only). An equivalent amounf of
cash in lieu of health benefits at the employee's current level of coverage (single party or two-parly plan only) can be

selected at the option of the employee. On June 30, 2003, 19 retirees met these eligibiliry requirements and a total of
$468,819 will be paid for these tuture benefits. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, $95,804 was paid by the

District under this program.

NOTE 10 - SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT PAYABLE

The District accrued a settlement in the amount of $ 1,065,825 on a law suit in August, 2005. Pursuant to GASB Statement

No. 10, the District accrued the loss because the amount was known and the settlement was probable (actual as of August

3,2005). Thetotalsettlementwas$6,731,650. OfthetotalseftlementtheDistrictisresponsibletopay$5,465,825with
the remaining $1,265,825 paid by the California Department of Education.

The District's $5,465,825 settlement was funded by an insurance reimbursement in the amount of $4,400,000, a loan in the

amount of $500,000 from Alliance Risk Management Services (agreement was signed in August, 2005) payable in three
yearly installments commencing fìscal year 2007, and the District's general fund in the amount of $565,825.

NOTE 11 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

A schedule ofchanges in long-term debt for the fiscal year ended June 30,2005, is shown below:

Compensated absences

Postemployment benefi ts

Early retirement incentives
General oblígation bonds

Certificates of participation
Settlement agreement payable

Unmatured interest payab le

(Capital appreciation bonds)

Totals

Prior
Balance Period

July 1, 2004 Adjustments

$ 373,915 $

95,409
383,217

67, r 78,888
I 5,43 5,000

I 3,901,65 I

(7 r,854)

Restated

Balance

July 1,2004

$ 373,915

95,409
3 I 1,363

67,178,888
r 5,43 5,000

13,901,651

$ 97,368,080 (71,854) s 97,296,226
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNTFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATENÍENTS

June 30, 2005

NOTE 11 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERIVÍ DEBT (Continued)

A schedule ofchanges in long-term debt for the hscal year ended June 30.2005, is shorvn below:

Compensated absences

Postemployment benefi ts

Early retirement incentives

General obligation bonds

Certifi cates of participation

Settlement agreement PaYable
Unmatured interest paYable

(Capital apprec iation bonds)

Totals

Restated

Balance
Julv l. 2004 Additions

$ 373,91 5

95,409

3 1 1,363

67, I 78,888

15,435,000

I 3,90 1 ,65 I

NOTE 12 -JOINT POWER AUTHORITIES

Manhattan Beach Unified School District participated in three joint ventures under joint powers agreements (JPA) entities:

the Los Angeles County Alliance of Schools of Co-operative Insurance programs -"ASCIP", the Schools Excess Liabiliry

Fund - ,,SÉLF", and the Centinela South Bay Self Insurance Authoriry - "CSBSIA". The District pays premiums

commensurate with the level of coverage requested or compensation of employees where payroll is a determining factor,

and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to its participation in the JPA.

Each JpA is governed by an independent board consisting ofrepresentatives ofmember districts. Each governing board

controls the õperation oí16.lpR, independent of any influence by the Manhattan Beach Unified SchoolDistrict beyond

the District's representation on the governing boards. Each JPA is independently accountable for its fiscal matters'

The relationships between rhe Manhanan Beach Unifìed School District and the JPAs is such that the JPAs are not a

component unif of the Manhattan Beach Unified School District for financial reporting purposes'

Alliance of Schools for Co-operative Insurance (ASCIP)

The ASCIp arranges for and provides property and liability insurance for its members, all of whom are Southern

Califomia School Districts.

Schools Excess Liabilitv Fund (SELFI

The SELF arranges for and provides excess Iiabiliþ- insurance for its members.

Centinela South Bay Self Insurance Authoriqv ( CSBSIA)

The CSBSIA arranges for and provides workers compensation. propeÉy, third party liabiliry risk claims, and certain

employee benefìts insurance for its members.

$ 23,424
20,000

s 97.296,226 S 4,102,079 $ 3,000J!L s 98,397,752 $ 3,509'l 17:-::

Balance

Deletions June 30. 2005

1,065,825

2,992,830

$

79,749
95,804

2,17 5,000
6s0,000

s 397,339
35,660

215,559
65,003,888
14,785,000

1,065,825

16,894,481

Due within
One Year

s
10,400

95,804

2,438,706
670,000

282,913

11,294
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MANHATTAN BBACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2005

NOTE l2 - JOINT POWER AUTHORITIES (Continued)

Audited and unaudited condensed financial information of ASCIP, SELF, and, CSBSIA are as follows:

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total Net Assets

Total revenue
Total expenditures

Change in Net Assets

ASCIP
(Audited)

June 30. 2005

$ r08.715.729

78.635.152

$-åo*9=8gf1f

$ 60,670,395
53.712.349

$-_:éprru4é

SELF CSBSIA
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

June 30.2005 June 30.2004*

$ r80.614.745 $ 7.940,853

174.685.047 2,603.000

L:å*e_2998 LJJ!J-85_3

$ 40,690,092 $ 4,2g5.017
60.625j29 6.491.426

L:(w_Þ*4-4A $_:=€¿gé*{_qÐ

*Most recent audited information available as of report date.

The District's share of fiscal year ending assets, liabilities, or equity in these JPAs has not been calculated or provided
by the JPA administrators for these entities.

NOTE 13 - COMNIITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

State and Federal Àllor"un..r, Awards and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor
agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that
any required reimbursements will not be material.

Litigation

In August 3, 2005, the District entered into a settlement agreement with a student in the amount of $6,?31,650. The
settlement will be paid by the District and the California Department of Education in the amount of $5,465,825 and
$1,265,825 respectively.

According to the District's staff and attorney except the above mentioned case, there are no contingent liabilities
outstanding or lawsuits pending of any real financial consequence,

Postemployment Health Benefit Programs

On July I, 1993, the District unified with the South Bay Union High SchoolDistrict and assumed its early retirement
incentive and postemployment health benefit programs. Contracts were assumed with eligible retirees whereby
retirement and health benefits will be paid for varying lengths of time. Basecl on an actuarial study conducted in 2002,
the estimated remaining liability for these retirees is $658,054. This liability is reflected in the self funded Reriree
Benefits Fund. On June 30, 2005, 29 retirees were eligible and a total of $96,004 in benefits was paid under this
program.
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NIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

NOTE 14 - EIITPLOYEE RETIREVIENT SYSTEùIS

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS)

Plan Description

The lvlanhanan Beach Unified School District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-

sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined beneht pension plan administered by STRS. The

Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state

statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive

annual fìnancial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS'

annual financial report may be obtained from the STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95826.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8 .0 % of their salary and the Ma¡hanan Beach Unified School District is
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The acfuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the

rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal

year 2ffi4-2005 was 8 .25% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by

state sratute. The Manhattan Beach Unified School District's contributions to STRS for the fiscal years ending June 30,

2005,2Cf,4, and 2003, were $1,908,131, $1,918,932, and $1,975,108, respectively, and equal 100% of the required

contributions for each fiscal year.

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS)

Plan Description

The Manhanan Beach Unified School District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public

Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system

defined benefit pension plan administered by CaIPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, a¡nual

cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and benefrciaries. Benefit provisions are established by

state stafues, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CaIPERS issues a separate

comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
Copies of the CaIPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CaIPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street,

Sacramento, California 958 14.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 7.0% of their salary Qo/o of monthly salary over $ 133.33 if the member
participates in Social Securiry), andthe Manhattan Beach Unifìed School District is required to contribute an acfuarially
determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CaIPERS

Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for the fiscal year 2004-2005 was 9.952% of annual

payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The lvlanhattan Beach

Unifìed School District's contributions to CaIPERS forthe fiscalyears ending June 30,2005,2004, and 2003, were

S803,676,$896,644,andSl83,623,respectively,andequal 100%oftherequiredcontributionsforeachfiscal year.

NOTE 15 - PRIOR PERIOD ADruSTÌIIENTS

Prior year adjustments totaling ($495,80ó) in the government-rvide financial statements were due to an understatement

of accounts payable of ($567,660), and an overstatement of early retirement incentive of $71,854. A prior year

adjustment of ($567,660) in the general fund was due to an understatement of accounts payable.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQLIENT EVENTS

As menrioned in Note 10, and 13, the District entered into a settlement agreement in the amount of $6,73 1,650.
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DTSTRICT

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUI"¡DS

COIvf BINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash in county treasury

Accounts receivable:

Other

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Unreserved:

Undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Deferred Child
Ivlaintenance DeveloPment

Fund Fund Totals

s 385,0s5 $ 238,852 s 623,907

2,006 234,575 236,581

_q_i! É.]_ !__4?3,427_ _$____860,48!_

$ - $ 267,550 $ 267,5s0

190,000 190.000

457,550 457,550

387,061 15,877 402,938

387,061 15,877 402,938

$ 387,061 8 4',13,427 $ 860,488
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IVIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFTED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONIVTAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FLINDS

COIVÍBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES' EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues:
Federal

Other state

Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries

Classified salaries

Employee benefits

Books and supPlies

Contracted services and other

operating exPenses

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources

over (under) expenditures and other

uses

Fund balances, July 1,2004

Fund balances, June 30, 2005

Defened

iv{aintenance

Fund

$-
241,7 47

2,501

244,248

FLIND BALANCES

child
Development

Ft¡nd

$ 24,335

920,740
2,099,17?

3,044,247

826,337

I , I 05,0e0

628,259
241,980

230,727

2,457

I I,455

13,912

230,336

l3 5,630

135,630

Totals

$ 24,335

|,162,487
2,101,673

3,28 8,495

826,337

I , I 05,090
628,259
244,437

242,182

3,046,305

242,190

135,630

135,630

3,032,393

365,966

21,095

I l,854

$ 387,061 $ 15,877 $ 402'938:-

4,023 25,118

I I,854 377,820
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NIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NONÌV1AJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COIV{BINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FLIND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2005

Revenues:
Federal

Other state

Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries

Classified salaries

Employee benefits
Books and supplies

Total expenciiiures

Excess ofrevenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in

Total other fìnancing sources (uses)

Excess ofrevenues and other sources

over (under) expenditures and other
uses

Fund balances, July I, 2004

Fund balances, June 30, 2005

Deferred Maintenance Fund

Variance

Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

$-$-$-
75,000 24t,747

2,501

166,747

2,501

50,000 2,457 47,543

Contracted services and other operating expenses I 50,000 I I ,455 I 3 8,545

200,000 13,912 186,088

75,000 244,248 169,248

(125,000) 230,336 355,336

135,630 135,630

13s,630 135,630

10,630 365,966 355,33ó

21,095

$ 31,725 $ 387,061 $ 355,336
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Final
Budget

Child Development Fund

sso,0oo

2,912,850

803,1 13

r,040,221
595,352
266,000
208,000

2,912,686

164

Actual

s 24,335

920,740

2,099,172

3,044,247

826,337

I , 1 05,090

628,259

24t,980
230,727

3,032,393

I I,854

Variance
Positive Final

(Negative) Budget

s 24,335

30,740

76,322

131,397

s-
965,000

2,022,850

2,997,850

803,1 13

t,040,22r
595,352
3 16,000

(23,224)
(64,869)
(32,907)
24,020

164

4,023

Totals

(22,727) 358,000 242,182

(119,707) 3,n2,686 3,046,305

Actual

24,335

1,162,497

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

3,288,495

826,337

I , I 05,og0
628,259
244,437

il,690

I I,854

4,023

$ 15,877

( I 24,836)

135,630

24,335
197,487

78.823

135,630

l r,690

300,645

(23,224)
(64,86e)
(32,907)
71,563

ll5,8l8

66,3 8 I

242,190

25,118 25,118

10,794

r 35,630

367,026

t 35,630

377,820

$ 402,93 8

367,026
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONIV{AJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

BALANCE STIEET

June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash and investments with frscal agent

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Fund balance:

Un¡eserved:

Undesignated

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

Corporate
Debt Service

Fund

s 2s,t-t4

$ 25,174

25,1'7 4

25,174

s 25,t74
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FTIND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CFTANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues:

Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess ofrevenues and other sources

over (under) expenditures and other

USES

Fund balance, July 1,2004

Fund balance, June 30, 2005

Corporate

Debt Service

Fund

421

288,8ó3

288,863

(288,442)

2',72,556

272,556

421

( l 5,886)

41,060

$ 2s,174
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NIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues:
Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess ofrevenues and other sources

over (under) expenditures and other

USES

Fund balance, July 1,2004

Fund balance, June 30, 2005

Corporate Debt Service Fund

Variance

Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

$ - s 421 $ 421

42r 421

288,863 (288,863)

288,863 (288,863)

(288,442) (288,442)

272,556 272,556

272,556 272,ss6

(15,886) (15,886)

41.060 41,060

$ 4l,060 s 25,174 $ (15,886)
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ÙIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONN{AJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

CON{BINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash in county treasury

Accounts receivable:

Other

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Fund balances:

Unreserved:

Undesignated

Total fund balances

Capital
Facilities

Fund

Counry
School

Facilities
Fund

482,1'.76

3,034

Total liabilities and fund balances

485,210

1,229,631

9'79)

Totals

$ 1,71 1,807

12,826

s 1.724,633

485,210

485,210

48s,210

1,239,423

s 1,239,423

1,239,423

l,'724,633

$ r.724$33

1,724,633
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONIVIAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FTNDS

C OMBINING STATEIVIENT OF REVENU E S, EXPENDITU RE S,

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jtlne 30, 2005

Revenues:
Other state

Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Books and supplies

Contracted services and other

operating expenses

Capitaloutlay

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balances, July 1,2004

Fund balances, June 30, 2005

AND CHANGES TN FLI'ND BALANCES

Capital
Facilities

Fund

932,284

Counfy
School

Facilities
Fund

932.284

1,221,309
l 8,l l4

18,867

79,931

1,239,423

28.446

805,040

(3 I 9,830)

Totals

t27.244

1,221,309

950,398

2,171,707

485.210

1,239,423

18,867

79,931

127,244

2,044,463

(3 19,830)

g 1J24,633

28.446

1,239,423
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FTIND

COIvIBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FTIND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2005

Revenues:
Other state

Other local

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Books and supplies

Contracted services and other
operating expenses

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess ofrevenues over (under)

expenditures

Fund balances, July 1,2004

Fund balances, June 30, 2005

Capital Facilities Fund

Final
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

$-$-$-
903,000 932,284 29,284

903,000 932.284 29,284

25,000

75,000

750,000

18,867

79,931

6,133

(4,931)
28,446 ',72t,554

850,000 127,244 722,756

53,000 905,040 752,040

(3 19,830) (319,830)

l____lzg.q!Ð_ _e____195,2r0_ _$______?¿glg_
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Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 1,202,104 $ 1,221,309 $ t9,205 $ 1,202,104 $ 1,221,309 $ 19,205

3,400 l8,l 14 t4,714 906,400 950,398 43,998

1,205,504 1,239,423 33,919 2,t08,504 2,171,707 63,203

25,000 18,867 6,133

75,000 79,93t (4,931)

Final

County School Facilities Fund

Variance

Positive Final

1,205,504 1,239,423 33,919 1,258,504 2,044,463 7g5,g5g

$ t,205,501 $ t,239,423 $ 33,919 $ 938,674 $ 1,724,633 S 785,959

Totals

750,000 28,446 721,554

Variance
Positive

850,000 t2'7,244 722,756

(3 19,830) (3 19,830)
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SUPPLEIVIENTARY INFORMATION SECTION
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZA'|ION
June 30, 2005

The members of the Board of Trustees of the Manhattan Beach l-.lnified School Disnict holding ofäce during the audit period and their
respective expiration dates of terms of office were as follows:

NAlvlE OFFICE TERM EXPIRES

Lynette Campbell President December 2005

Amy Howorlh Vice President December 2007

Joseph Loverich Clerk December 2005

Bill Cooper ÌVlember December 2007

Nlary A. Rogers Member December 2005

ADMINISTRATION

Gwen E. Gross, PhD
Superintendent

Stephen L. McMahon
Assistant Superintendent - Business

Janet Schwabe
Director - Personnel

Ellyn Schneider
Director - Special Education
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
For FiscalYear Ended June 30, 2005

Elementary
Kindergarten
First through Third
Fourth through Sixth
Seventh and Eighth
Home and Hospital
Special Education
Extended Year

Subtotals

Secondary
Ninth through Twelfth
Home and Hospital
Special Education
Extended Year
Regional Occupational Center

Mandated Programs

Subtotals

Totals

Revised
Second Period

Report

512.93
1,239.58
1,241.16

786.57
0.23

25.84
6. l6

3.8t2.47

2,289.41
3. t8

97.38
13.00

128.t4

2.53 1. I I

:6J43llt

Hours of
Supplemental Instructional Hours Attendance

Elementary 10,731

Secondary 3.509

=-)424e

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District, The purpose of attendance

accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which appoÍionments of state funds are made to school districts. This

schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

Revised
Annual
Report

513.89
1,23 8.5 I

1,240.84
78 5.08

0.33
27.5t

6.16

3.812.32

2,271.63
4.99

93.82
l3.00

134.15

2.517.59

__6&29)
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2005

NLrmber of
I 982-83 I 986-87 2004-05 Days
Acfual Minutes Actual Traditional

Grade Level lvlinutes Requirement lvlinutes Calendar Status

Kindergarten 35,000 36,000 36,000 180 In compliance

Grades I through 3 45,500 50,400 s0,427 180 In compliance

Grades 4 through 5 5,1,250 54,000 s7,i\0 180 In compliance

Grades 6 through 8 56,875 54,000 63,880 180 In compliance

Grades 9 through 12 * 64,800 64,995 lB0 In compliance

*Not applicable - The high school joined the District in July 1, 1993.

Districts must maintain their instructional minutes at either the 1982-83 actual minutes or the 1986-87 requirement, whichever is
greater by Education Code Section 46201.

The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructionaltime as provided by the Incentive for Longer Instructional Day.
This schedule presents information on the amount of instruction time offered by the District and whether the District complied with the
provisions ofEducation Code Sections 46201 through 46206.
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ÙIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FTNIANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Ceneral Fund

Revenues and other

financial sources

Expenditures

Other uses and translèrs

out

Total outgo

Prior period adjustments

Change in fund balance

Ending fund balance

Available reserves

Designated for economic

uncertainties

(Budgeted)

2006

$ 47,862,983 S 48,561.878

Undesignated fund balance

Available reseryes as a

percentage of total outgo

Available reserve percentage

lvith inclusion of unrestricted

special reserve fund

Total long-term debt

Average daily attendance

at P-2

4'1,i57,000

I 35,630

2005

4'.1,892,630

47,056.926

408,087

47,465.0 r 3

(s67,660)

529,205

$ 1,896,235

s I ,650,91 I

(29.64'7)

s 1,866,588

s 1,62t,264

2004

s-$-
s t,621,264 S 1,650,91I

This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past fiscal years' data along rvith cuffent fiscal year budget

information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going concem for a

reasonable period of time.

The General Fund balance has increased by $1,133,824 over the fwo past fiscal years. The fiscal year2005-2006 budget projects a

decrease of $29,64j. V/hen the unrestricted Special Reserve Fund is included in the calculation (as allowed bythe State), the available

reseryes measured as a percentage of total outgo was 15.26%. For a district this size, the state recommends available reserve of at

least 3% oftotal general fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating surpluses in each the past three fiscal years, and anticipates a deficit during the 2005-2006 fiscal

year. Total long-term debt has increased by $13,863,805 over the past two fiscal years'

Average daily attendance has decreased by 107 over the past two fiscal years. An increase of 95 ADA is anticipated during the fiscal

year 2005-2006.

48;i 14,762

47.642,994

430.268

48,073,262

(36,88 I )

604.619

2003

3.39Yo

49,795,460

_$____.Ëi19tt

$ I ,1 00,934

$

$ I , 100,934

2.29o/o

48,843,172

220.904

15.06Yo

94,888,63 5

6,439

49,064,0',76

3.48o/o

15.26%

98,397,752

6,344

731.384

$ 555,468

$-

762,4n

t6.27%

97,368,080

6,4t3

55 5,468

Ll3Yo

2l.26Yo

$ 84,533,947

6,451
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MANHATTAN BEACH UIIIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Federal Grantor,iPass Through
GrantorlProgram or Cluster Title

Federal Programs:
U.S. Department of Education passed Through

California Department of Education;
IDEA Part B:

Local Assistance

Preschool Local Entitlement
StaffDevelopment

Sub-Total 84.027
IDEA Part B:

Preschool Staff Development
Federal Preschool

Sub-Total 84.173

Title II - Teachers Quality
Title I

Carl Perkins Vocational Education;
Title II, Part C, Sec.l3l, Secondary Education

Title IV Safe and Drug-Free Schools

Title IV - Innovative Strategies

Title III - Limited English Proficiency
Title V Part D - Foreign Langauge Assistance

U.S. Department of Agriculture Passed Through
The California Department of Education:

National School Lunch
Basic School Breakfast Program

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Passed

Through the California Department of Education:

Quality Improvement
School-Age Child Care Resource Contracts

Total Federal Awards

The accornpanying notes are an integral part ofthis schedule.

Federal

Catalog

Number
Federal

Expendirures

$ 828.584
1,615

78,166
908,3 65

348
44,979
¿.\ ))1

244,753
94,859

25,03I
I 3,53 g

26,594
57

1s.556

l23,8lg
32,505

14,605
9,730

$ 1,5511,645

84.027

84.0271.
84.027 A

84.1734
84.t73

84.367

84.010

84.048

84. I 86

84.298A
84.365
84.293

10.555

10.553

93.575
93.57 5
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IVIANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTE TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2005

NOTE I _ BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activily of Manhattan Beach Unified School

District and is presented on the modifìed accrual basis of accounting. The information ur this schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of OlvfB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some

amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic f,rnancial statements.
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT (J-2OO) WITH
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEIVÍENTS
June 30, 2005

chitd
General Development Cafeteria
Fund Fund Fund

June 30,2005 Annual Financial and Budget Report (Form J-200)
FundBalances g 1,871.604 $ 15,877 S 36,371

Understatement of cash and investments with fiscal agent

Overstatement of account receivab le

Overstatement of accounts payable

June 30, 2005 Audited Financial Statements Fund Balances

( r ee,5e2)

)7¿. ))7

s 1,896,235 $ 15,977 $ 36,371

Bond
Interest

and Self - Reriree
Redemption Insurance Benetìt

Fund Fund Fund

June 30, 2005 Annual Financial and Budget Report (Form J-200)
FundBalances g 3,233,3gg g 3l,l3l $ 305,0g0

June 30, 2005 Audited Financial Statements Fund Balances $ 3,233,388 $ 3l,l3l $ 305.080:

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balances of all funds and the total
liabilities ofthe general Iong-term debt account group as reported on the Form J-200 to the audited financial
statements.
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Deferred
lv{aintenance

Fund

Special

Reserve

Fund

387,061 $ 5,-s99,359

Building
Fund

387.061

1,160,303

2,077

Capital
Fac ilities

Fund

$ 5,590,359 $ 1,323,070 S 4g5,210

160,690

County
School

Facilities
Fund

485,210

June 30, 2005 Annual Financial and Budget Report (Form J-200)
Total Liabilities
Understatement of compensated absences

Overstatement of post-employment benefi ts
Understatement of interest payable

June 30,2005 Audited Financial Statements Long-Term Debt
Total Liabilities

1,239,423

1,239.423

Long-Term
Debt

94,421,959
23,424

( 1 06,1 85)
2,992,930

97,331
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.DENOTES PROFESSIOIAL CORPORATION
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MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM
Beverly Hills, California
November 29,2005

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZTIEIM
CERIIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
9I07 WILSHIRE BLVD., SUITE 4OO

BEVERLY HILLS. CALIFORNIA 90210
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AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AT./DITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Manhattan Beach Unified School District
Manhaftan Beach, California

We have audited the fìnancial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Manhattan Beach Unified School District (the District) as of and for the fiscal year ended Juni gO, 2005, and have
issued our report thereon dated November 29,2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of Amelica and the standards applicable to hnancial audits contain edin Governmenr Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Intemal Control Over Financial Rcporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's intemal control over financiat reporting in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporting would nåt necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which
the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the tìnancial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a tirnely period by emplol,ees in the normal course of performing their assigned functiõns. We noted
no mafters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be materiat weaknesses.
However, we noted other matters including the intemal control over financial reporting, which we described in the fìndings and
recommendation section of this reporl.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's fìnancial statements are free of material mísstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standard.s.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, State Controller's Office,
DeparÍment of Finance, Department of Education, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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RON/\LD A LEVY, C,P A'
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AIJ'DITOR'S REPORT ON STATE CONÍPLIANCE

Board of Trustees
Manhattan Beach Unified School District
Manhattan Beach, California

MOSS, LEVY & IIARTZHEIM
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
9I07 WILSHIRE BLVD., SUITE 4OO

BEVERLY HILLS, CALIFORNIA 9O2IO

TELEPHONE (l I t)) Z't3-2115
FAX (310):73-lôS9
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\fE,uBE&

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the Manhattan Beach Unified School District as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, and have issued our

report thereon dated November 29,2W5. Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America; the standards for f inancial and compliance audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by

the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Education Audit Appeals Panel's Standards and Procedures for Audits of
Caliþrnia K-12 Local Educational Agencies. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation,

rile believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The District's management is responsible for the District's compliance with laws and regulations, In connection with the audit

referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the District's compliance with the state laws and

regulations applicable to the following items:

,\\{ERICÀ\ NSTITL¡TE OF C P A,S

CÀLIFORNIA SOCIETY OF C,PA.S

CAIIFOfu\IA SOCIETY OF
IruNICIP,\L FINAI{CE OFFICERS

C ÀLIFOR,\I A AS SOC IATION OF

SCHOOL BUSINESS OFF ICI AJ,S

Description

Attendance accounting:
Attendance reporting
Kindergarten continuation
Independent study

Continuation education

Adult education

Regional occupational centers/programs

Instructional time and staff development

reform program
Instructional time:

School districts
Countl' offices of cducation

Community day schools

Class size reduction:
General requirements

Option one classes

Option two classes

Districts with only one school serving K-3

BEVERLY HILLS. CALIFORNIA
s.\ìiT,\ \lARlÀ CÀLIFOtu\lA

Procedures in
Controller's
Audit Guide

6

3

22
t0
9

6

,7

Procedures
Performed

Yes
Yes

No (see below)
Not applicable
Not applicable

No (see below)

Yes

Yes

Not applicable
Not applicable

Yes

Yes

Not applicable
Not applicable

4

3

9

7

3

4

4
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Description

Instructional materials general requirements
K-8 only
Grades 9-12

Ratios of administrative employees to teachers
Early retirement incentive program
GANN limit calculation
School construction funds:

School district bonds
State school facilities funds

Alternative pension plans
Proposition 20 lottery funds (Cardenas Textbook Act

of 2000)

Procedures
in Controller's

Audit Guide

12

I
I
I
4

1

J

I
2

2

Procedures
Performed

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Not applicable
Yes

Not applicable
Yes
Not applicable

Yes
Yes
Not applicable
Yes

State lottery funds (California State Lottery Act of 1984) z
California school age families education (Cal-Safe) program 3

School accountability report card

We did not perform testing for independent study because the independent study ADA was below the level which requires testing.

We did not perform procedures for the ADA of the ROP program because the ROP program is administered by Southern
California Regional Occupational Center (SCROC). The SCROC is audited in each year pursuant to Srate Audit Guide
requirement.

Based on our audit, we found that, for the items tested, the Manhattan Beach Unifìed School District complied with the state laws
and regulations referred to above, except as described in the Findings and Recommendations section of this report. Further, based
on our examination, for the items not tested, nothing came to our attention to indicate that the Manhattan Beach Unified School
District had not complied with the state laws and regulations.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, State Controller's Office, Department of Finance, and
the Department of Education, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM
Beverly Hills, California
November 29,2005
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AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COIVIPLIANCE \ryITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-I33

Board of Trustee
Manhattan Beach Unified School District
Manhattan Beach, Califomia

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZIIEIM
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOLÎ\¡]'ANTS
9I07 WILSHIRE BLVD., SUITE 4OO

BEVERLY HILLS, CALIFORNIA 90210

TELEPHONE (3 l 0)273-2745
F.\X r3r0) 273-t689

E-Il,\lL rnlhbh Qpacbell net

UE}ILER:

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the Manhattan Beach Unified School District with the types of compliance requirements described
in the U.S. Office of Management and Buclget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement lhat are applicable to its major federal
program for the fìscal year ended June 30, 2005. The Manhattan Beach Unified School District's major federal program is identified
in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the Manlattan
Beach Unified School District's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Manhattan Beach Unified School
District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits containedinGovernment Auditing Standqrds, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United
States; and OMB Circular A- 133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A- l3 3 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types

of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the lvfanlattan Beach Unified School District's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Manhattan Beach Unified School
District's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Manhaftan Beach Unifìed School District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
abovethatareapplicabletoeachofitsmajorfederal programsforthefiscal yearended June30,2005.

lnternal Control Over Compliance
The management of the Nfanhattan Beach Unified School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and

performing our audit, we considered the lvlanhattan Beach Unified School District's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditurg procedures for
the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance rvith
ONIB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance rvould not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might

be material weaknesses. A material rveakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal

control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance rvith applicable requirements of laws,

regulations, contracts, and grants caused by error or fiaud that tvould be material in relation to a major federal program being audited

may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We

noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

,{\fERIC.I\ I}.JSTITUTE OF CPAS
C,\LIFOL\IA SOCIETY OF C.PA,S
c,\LlFotu\1,\ socIETY oF

}fL}ICIPAL FNÂ\CE OFFICERS
CÀLIFOR\IA ASSOCI,\TION OF

SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAIS

BE},TRLY HILLS, CALIFORNTA
S/INTA MÄRIA. C¡\IIFOtu\lA
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Srate Controller's Office,
Department of Finance, Department of Education, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is not intendcd to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

i .l)p ë...rs ;arr,*W V *t* ''. .:. ";* 3
{

NÍOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM
Beverly Hills, California
November 29,2005
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FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS SECTION
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2005

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial StaÍentents

Type of auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identifìed?
Reporting condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federctl Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Reporting condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
repofted in accordance with Circular A-133
Section.5l0 (a)

Identification of major programs

CFDA Number (s)

84.027

Internal control over state programs:
Material weakness(es) identifìed?
Reporting conditions(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
state programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $ 300.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee: X yes No

Slate Atyards

Unqualified

Yes X No

Yes None reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

X Yes None reported

Unqualified

Yes X No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

IDEA-Part B - Special Education

Yes X No

X Yes None reported

Qualified
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2005

Section Il- Financial Statement Findings

Finding:
A review of the District's general revolving fund (non-cafeteria) and cash clearing fund disclosed that the respective employee who
was responsible for preparing checks was also responsible for the preparation of the bank reconciliation.

Recommendation;
The District should segregate the above duties in order to strengthen the internal control procedures.

District's Response:
Bank reconciliations have been assigned to another individual.

SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING 2OO5.I
REVOLVING CASH AND CASH CLEARING

30000

Finding:
An examination of the payroll system disclosed that37 out of 46 action forms lacked the respective personnel's authorizing signatures.

Recommendation:
The Dishict should review all action forms for completeness prior to processing them into the payroll system.

Response:
Payroll staff is retuming incomplete documents to the originator for further information and signatures.

FINDING 2005.3
PAYROLL SYSTEM

30000

Finding:
An examination of the payroll documentation disclosed that

supervisor signafure.

Recommendation:

FINDING 2OO5-2

PAYROLL SYSTEM
30000

The District should revierv alI timecards for appropriate supervisor and employee signatures prior to processing the timecards into the
payroll system. Thiswouldpreventfuturedisagreementsregardingtheamountofhoursthattheemployeewaspaidfor.

Response:
Timecards are revierved by payroll staff and no longer processed without authorizing signatures.

ten out of 46 timecards lacked either the respective employee or
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NTANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2005

Section II- Financial Statement Findings (Continued)

FINDING 2OO5-4

PAYROLL SYSTEM
30000

Finding:
An examination of the payroll documentation disclosed that 5 out of 46 I-9 forms were not obtained/ retained, and 7 out of 46 I-9
forms were incomplete.

Recontmendation:
The District should implement procedures to ensure that all I-9 forms are obtained and reviewed by the District,

Response:
Personnel depaÉment has been advised of the need for compliance and has instiruted procedures necessary to assure the

implementation.

FINDING 2OO5-5

PAYROLL SYSTEM
30000

Finding:
An examination of the payroll documentation disclosed that 6 out of 46 employee applications were not obtained/retained by the

District.

Recommendation:
The District should obtain and retain an application for each employee that is hired by the District.

Response:
The Personnel deparfment will obtain and retain all applications by employees in accordance with this directive.

F'INDTNG #2005-6
STUDENT BODY ACCOUNTS

30000

Finding:
At Manhaftan Beach Middle School, we noted that 6 out of 20 invoices or other supporting documentation were not obtainedr'retained

by the School.

Recommendation:
The District should require the Schoolto obtain and retain all the supporting documents for all payments made from the student body

bank account.

District's Response:
The District has informed the Student Body Advisor at Nlanhattan Beach llfiddle School about the need to retain all necessary

documcntation.
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}IANHATTAN
SCHEDULE OF
June -r0, 2005

Section II- Financial Statement Findings (Continued)

BEACH L'NIFIED
AUDIT FII{DNCS

Finding:
At Nfanhanan Beach Nliddle School, we noted that a "PAID" stamp is not used. Also at lvfira Costa High School, we noted that 3 out

of 20 invoices did not have a "PAID" stamp'

Recommendation:
The District should require the Schools to use a "PAID" stamp to prevent invoices from being resubmitted for payment.

District's Response:
The District has informed the Student Body advisors of both schools about the requirement to stamp "PAID" on the submitted

invoices. An internal audit will periodically review compliance.

FINDING #2005.8
STUDENT BODV ACCOUNTS

30000

SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING #2005-7
STfDENT BODY ACCOLNTS

30000

Finding:
At Mira Costa High School, we noted that I out of 20 invoices lacked the respective personnel's authorizing signature, and 6 out of 20

invoices did not have check request t'orms which contain the approval signafures.

Recommendation:
The District should require the School to veriff that all invoices are properly approved by the designated authorizing personnel. The

School should investigate both invoices that do not contain the authorizing signatures, and supporting documents that do not contain a

check request fbrm, to prevent payments of unauthorized purchases.

District's Response:
The Dishict hai advised the Student Body accountant to obtain proper documentation for disbursements and willperiodically conduct

internal audits for compliance.

FINDING #2005.9
STUDENT BODY ACCOUNTS

30000

Finding:
At NliriCosta High School, rve noted that deposits that rvere collccted by the,\SB offìce rvere not deposited in a timely'manner. We

also noted that when a club advison:stutlent tum in the deposits to the ASB ofiìce, the club advisor does not sign olf on the deposit

form to authenticate the amount that he, she has submitted. During our test of cash receipts at the l\f anhattan Beach lllidtlle School, rve

noted that hvo transactions lyere deposited one tveek after the dates entered in the general ledger.

Recommendation:
'fhe District should require that cleposits be made tinrely and that rll of the deposits be signcd by the respective club advisor.

Response:
The District hes inlormed both Sttrdent Body advisors about timeliness of deposits rnd proper record keeping. This tìnding rvill be

audited internally flor compliance.
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SCHEDUI-E OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QI.JESTIONED COSTS
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Section lll - Federal Arvard Findings and Questioned Costs

None

80



MANHATTAN BBACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30,2005

Section IV - State Arvard Finding and Questioned Costs

Finding:
Dr.rring attendance testing at Mira Costa High School, 'uve noted that 10 out of 50 absence notes did not match the information provided

on the altendance summary. We also noted the following findings:

-There were lto signatures on the attendance sheets from one teacher for periods 2-4 for the week of 312112005.

-For the week of 3 2812005, a teacher only submitted 6 copies of period I aftendance, instead of submitting all of the periods

he/she taught for the week.

-One teacher submitted the repoft for the week of 3/ 14/2005 when he/she should have submitted the report for 2l2l/2005 .

-Original Scantrons were not presented for one teacher for period 6, Track & Softball-G irls, for the lveek of 3ll12005. Computer
generated forms lvere submitted and revier,ved; however, these forms lacked approval signatures.

-Attendance report for one teacher for period 6 (lveek of 312112005) was not presented. We were only able to review the computer
generated report,

Questioned Costs
None

Recommendation:
The District has already rnade revisions on the average daily attendance report, but in order to have an audit trail, we recommend that
the School verify that the teachers' attendance rosters and attendance reports are properly completed and updated.

Response:
The District concurs will this finding and will institute the proper procedures.

FINDING 2OO5-II
KINDERG ARTEN RETENTION

FINDING 2OO5-10

ATTENDANCE
40000

Finding:
An examination of the kindergarten retention disclosed that two out of 42 kindergarleners did not have a retention agreement present
in their file even though they had repeated kindergarten. Additionally, 40 out of 42 kindergarten retention agreements were not signed
by a school official and the anniversary date lvas not present on one out of42 kindergarten retention agreements.

Recommendation:
The District should require allelementary schools to obtain/retain a completed kindergarten retention agreement for each child that
repeats kindergarten.

Questioned Costs:
s5,3 I l .43+2.-- S I 0,622.86

District Response:
"I-he District has inf'ormed sta[f at the elementary schools about the requirements for kindergarten pupil retention and rvill monitol lor
cornpliance,

40000
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MANHATTAN BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2005

Section II- Financial Statement Findings

FINDING 2OO4.I

REVOLVING CASH
30000

Finding:
A review of the District's ge¡eral revolving fund (non-cafeteria) disclosed that check disbut'set.nents required orrly one si-enature and

the account had not been reconciled since the last fiscal year audit.

Recommendation:
All checks shoLrld require two signatures and the account should be reconciled rnonthly to avoid misappropriation of funds.

Status:
Implemented

FINDING #2004-2
STUDENT BODY ACCOUNTS

30000

Finding:
At Manhattan Beach Middle School, we noted that a "PAID" stamp is not used.

Recommendation:
The District should require the School to use a "PAlD" stamp to prevent invoices from being resubmitted for payment.

Status:
Not Implemented - See Finding #2005-7

FINDING #2004-3
STUDENT BODY ACCOUNTS

30000

Finding:
At Manhattan Beach Middle School, we noted that 7 out of the 20 invoices were not retained by the School.

Recom ¡nendation:
The District shor.rld require the School to obtain and retain all the supporting docurnents for all payments rnade frorn the student body
bank account.

Status:
Not Implemented - See Finding 42005-6
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2005

Section II- Financial Statement Findings (Continued)

Finding:
The test of disbursements revealed that invoices examined did not contain "Paid" stalnps.

Recommendation:
The District should starnp "Paid" on invoices immediately after the payment is ntade to prevent invoices from being resubmitted for
payment.

Status:
lmplemented

FINDING 2OO4-4

CASH DISBURSEMENTS
30000

Finding:
During the test of payroll, it was noted that 3l out of 60 current personnel action forms r.vere not present, Fufthermore, for 25 out of
60, there were various types of forms (ie. Position Control Form) which showed an authorizing signature and stated the step, range, or
position, but each form was missing a vital piece of information such as an authorized district signature, the step the employee was at,

the range the employee was at, or the position that the employee was at.

Recommendation:
The District should keep a current personnel action form in every employee's personnel fìle. In addition, the District should examine
the various fypes of forms that sholv what the District employees shoLrld be paid and determine what type of infornlation needs to be
present on the various lornrs in order to clari$, the amount the ernployees should be paid,

Status:
Partial Implementation - Action forms rvere present in the personnel fìles, but the 37 out of 46 action forms lacked the respective
personnel's authorizing signatures.

FINDING 2004-6
PAYROLL

30000

FINDING 2004.5
PAYROLL

30000

Finding:
The test of payroll showed that l6 out of 60 I-9 for¡ns examined were not completely filled out, and in addition, there were no District
approval signatules present on these I-9 forms.

Recommendation:
The District should review all the l-9 forms to determine that they are correctly filled oirt. An authorized District employee should
sign the I-9 fbrms after revierving to verifo that the forms are valid.

Status:
Not lmplenrented - See Finding #2005-4
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Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

FINDING 2OO4-7

PAYROLL
30000

Finding:
The test of payLoll showed that employee signatures were not present for 10 out of 60 tilnecards.

Recommendation:
The District should require all tirnecards be signed by the ernployees in order to prevent future disagreements regarding the amount of
hours the employees were paid for.

Status:
Not Lnplemented - See Finding #2005-3

FINDING 20O4-8

INVENTORY
50000

Finding:
The District has established the use of data entry sheets and tags to track equiprnent purchases/additions. 'I'hese sheets and the related

reports contain all intbrnlation, including funding source, rvhich would be required by federal grantors. However, the District has not

generated or reconciled any detailed fixed assets listing for equipment purchased with federal funds prior to the200212003 fiscal year.

Recommendation:
A new equipment inventory listing should be implemented that includes the items which were acquired using federal fi"rnds prior to the

200212003 fìscal year separately identified.

Questioned Costs:
Unknown

Status:
hnplemented
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Section IV - State Arvard Finding and Questioned Costs

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Finding:
The District did not submit the correct nuntber of eligible classroom teachers on the 2003-2004 Instructional Tirne and Staff
Development Refonn (ITSDR) Program Consolidated Application. The total number of eligible classroom teachers per the District's
staff development teacher attendance worksheets was recounted, noting the District over reported the total number of eligible
classroom teachers.

Recommendation:
The District should review and conrpare the Staff Development Consolidated Application to District worksheets. The District should

le-submit a corrected Staff Developnlent Consolidated Application.

Questioned Costs:
Fifty one days with a daily rate of 5299.29, for a total of S15,263.79.

Status:
Implemented

FINDINC 2OO4-9
STAFF DEVELOPMENT

40000
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